
 

 

When telephoning, please ask for: Anna Poole 
Direct dial  0115 914 8511 
Email  democraticservices@rushcliffe.gov.uk 
 
Our reference:  
Your reference: 
Date: 26 May 2022 

 
 
To all Members of the Corporate Overview Group 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
A Meeting of the Corporate Overview Group will be held on Tuesday, 7 June 
2022 at 7.00 pm in the Council Chamber, Rushcliffe Arena, Rugby Road, West 
Bridgford to consider the following items of business. 
 
This meeting will be accessible and open to the public via the live stream on  
YouTube and viewed via the link: https://www.youtube.com/user/RushcliffeBC 
Please be aware that until the meeting starts the live stream video will not be  
showing on the home page. For this reason, please keep refreshing the home  
page until you the see the video appear. 
 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
Gemma Dennis 
Monitoring Officer   
 

AGENDA 

 
1.   Apologies for Absence  

 
2.   Declarations of Interest  

 
3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 3 May 2022 (Pages 1 - 16) 

 
4.   Terms of Reference for Corporate Overview Group and Scrutiny 

Committees (Pages 17 - 20) 
 

 Report of the Service Manager – Corporate Services 
 

5.   Consideration of Scrutiny Group Work Programmes (Pages 21 - 52) 
 

 Report of the Director – Finance and Corporate Services 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/user/RushcliffeBC


 

 

Meeting Room Guidance 

 
Fire Alarm Evacuation:  in the event of an alarm sounding please evacuate the 
building using the nearest fire exit, normally through the Council Chamber.  You 
should assemble at the far side of the plaza outside the main entrance to the 
building. 
 
Toilets: are located to the rear of the building near the lift and stairs to the first 
floor. 
 
Mobile Phones: For the benefit of others please ensure that your mobile phone is 
switched off whilst you are in the meeting.   
 
Microphones:  When you are invited to speak please press the button on your 
microphone, a red light will appear on the stem.  Please ensure that you switch 
this off after you have spoken.   
 

Recording at Meetings 

 
The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 allows filming and 
recording by anyone attending a meeting. This is not within the Council’s control.  
 
Rushcliffe Borough Council is committed to being open and transparent in its 
decision making.  As such, the Council will undertake audio recording of meetings 
which are open to the public, except where it is resolved that the public be 
excluded, as the information being discussed is confidential or otherwise exempt 
 
 



 

OFFICIAL 

 
 

MINUTES 
OF THE MEETING OF THE 

CORPORATE OVERVIEW GROUP 
TUESDAY, 3 MAY 2022 

Held at 7.00 pm in the Council Chamber, Rushcliffe Arena, Rugby Road, West 
Bridgford 

 
PRESENT: 

 Councillors T Combellack (Chairman), R Butler, N Clarke, B Gray, D Virdi and 
J Wheeler 

  
 OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 C Caven-Atack 

C Evans 
 
A Oxley 
A Poole 
S Whittaker  

Service Manager Corporate Services 
Service Manager Economic Growth 
and Property 
Finance Business Partner 
Democratic Services Officer 
Service Manager Finance 
 

20 Apologies for Absence 
 

 Apologies were received from Councillor B Bansal. 
  

21 Declarations of Interest 
 

 There were no declarations of interest.  
 

22 Minutes of the Meeting held on 1 February 2022 
 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 1 February 2022 were approved as a true 
record of the meeting and signed by the Chairman.  
 

23 The Impact of Covid-19 on Rushcliffe Borough Council - External Focus 
 

 The Service Manager Corporate Services delivered a presentation to support 
the report of the Director – Neighbourhoods concerning the specific work 
undertaken by the Council to support communities and businesses during the 
Covid-19 pandemic. It was explained that the report focused on the external 
impact of Covid-19 on the Council’s delivery of services and it complimented 
the previous report presented to the Group which focused on the internal 
impacts.  
 
The presentation to the Group covered:  

 Impact of Covid-19 on communities and businesses, sports clubs, 
voluntary and community groups, contracted services 

 Community Support Hub 

 Business support 

 Covid Compliance 

 Contracts Management 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

OFFICIAL 

 Communication 

 Critical Success Factors 
 
The Service Manager Corporate Services explained that the Community 
Support Hub, hosted by Nottinghamshire County Council, had received 133 
requests from individuals for support with medication collection, emergency 
food parcels, access to food supply, telephone befriending, physical wellbeing 
checks and dog walking. The Borough Council responded to these requests, 
by redeploying staff where required, to support Rushcliffe residents.  
 
In Rushcliffe, the level of requests for such support was lower than in other 
districts in the Local Resilience Forum (LRF) area due to the strong response 
received from volunteers in local communities, which was supported by local 
Councillors who, in many cases, took a leading role in facilitating and bringing 
together networks.  
 
Examples of the support provided to and by communities were highlighted to 
the Group and included:  

 Radcliffe to the Rescue, which generated 150 volunteers to support the 
whole community 

 Over 100 activity packs (including physical activity packs, recipe packs, 
Active Minds packs and bespoke Family Packs) developed and issued 
under the Reach Rushcliffe Initiative to homes/families and those who 
were socially isolated and lonely 

 Radcooks Community Kitchen which provided meals and social 
interaction to vulnerable Rushcliffe residents 

 Cotgrave Community Kitchen, which offered food delivery to residents 

 Holiday Activities and Food Programme, funded by Nottinghamshire 
County Council via the Department for Education, to provide children in 
receipt of free school meals with physical activity, nutritional education 
and a healthy meal during school holidays 

 Summer and Christmas programmes delivered in 2021 provided a total 
of 786 HAF funded places for 298 children, which will be funded for the 
further three years with additional provision of 1,524 places in Cotgrave, 
Bingham, West Bridgford, Edwalton, Radcliffe-on-Trent, Kinoulton and 
East Leake.  

 
The Group was informed that the Council had also supported those who could 
not work as they were self-isolating or were on low incomes with payments of 
£500 provided from Government funding. 1,158 applications had been received 
and 531 payments made, amounting to £265,500. Currently, there were three 
applications awaiting further information. The Group was assured that the 
funding would be processed by the deadline (June) as monies unspent had to 
be repaid to the Government 
 
The Council’s Communities Team had supported community groups, voluntary 
organisations, and charities across the Borough to apply for Social Recovery 
Funding and Community Food funding again allocated by central government 
through Nottinghamshire County Council. A total of £220,732 was awarded to 
support social recovery projects and £103,662 for Community Food based 
projects across Rushcliffe. 
 

Page 2



 

OFFICIAL 

Regarding the Councillors Community Support Grants Scheme, the Group was 
informed that the process had been streamlined to enable more efficient 
access to funding for community causes. This enabled Councillors to spend 
around £9,000 between May 2020 and August 2021 on projects such as PPE, 
food parcels, craft activities to beat social isolation, and materials for the 
creation of medical scrubs, face masks and laundry bags.  
 
The Group was informed that, during the pandemic, sports clubs ceased 
training and competition. Several funding streams were made available to 
support clubs through the pandemic and during re-opening.  In May 2020, 
Sport England’s Emergency Fund allocated £22,305 to sports clubs in 
Rushcliffe; 60% of applications received were allocated funding. Officers 
supported sports clubs in their return as the pandemic eased, with provision of 
templates for Covid documentation and guidance on implementing Covid 
measures and creating risk assessments.  Funding and resources were still 
available for those financially impacted by the pandemic. 
 
The Service Manager Corporate Services explained that the Council had put in 
place a number of measures to support the Rushcliffe business community. A 
dedicated Covid-19 business support webpage had received 41,000 views, 
and regular posts were put on the Council’s and Rushcliffe Business 
Partnership’s social media pages.  In addition, the Council was allocated 
£212,000 of Welcome Back Funding by the European Regional Development 
Fund to support the safe re-opening of town centres, which in Rushcliffe 
included: 

 Allocation of £10,000 to each of the larger town/parish councils 

 10 business support webinars held with expert consultants providing 
advice and support 

 24 businesses received one-to-one business support from retail and PR 
consultants 

 30 market traders attended a webinar on the basics of social media and 
establishing a digital presence  

 Shop local shop safe communications campaign 

 Appointment of High Street Ambassadors to support the reopening of 
high streets and be a visible presence to provide reassurance 

 Enhanced summer events programme in West Bridgford to encourage 
people back into the town centre 

 Improvements to the appearance of town centres including; new 
planters in Bridgford Park, lighting at Eaton Place in Bingham and 
improvements to seating areas on Gordon Square  

 The appointment of a temporary Town Centre Manager who has 
supported the delivery of a number of events and markets, the 
establishment of retail forums/meetings and one-to-one business 
support  

 Development of a new strategy for West Bridgford Way to enhance what 
it offers, support local businesses and increase footfall 

 The appointment of a contractor to address and reduce ASB/littering in 
parks 

 The simplification of the process for applying for pavement licenses, to 
enable businesses to use pavements for seating to ensure social 
distancing measures were adhered to. 

 

Page 3



 

OFFICIAL 

The Group was informed that occupation levels in Council-owned commercial 
property remained high at around 97%. Current tenants had been offered rent 
holidays during the pandemic which totalled £134,000 for 24 tenants, of which 
£75,000 had been repaid. 19 tenants had cleared their debts, four remained 
with payment plans, with just under £60,000 outstanding. Tenants had been 
very grateful for the support provided by the Council during such a challenging 
time.  
 
Regarding Covid compliance, the Environmental Health Team had worked to 
ensure that businesses complied with the Government’s Covid guidance.  In 
total, 23 fixed penalty notices had been served on businesses that had 
breached Covid regulations and the closure of a business in West Bridgford 
which had repeated breaches had been sought.  800 additional Covid-related 
enforcement/advisory visits had been completed by the Team, which was in 
addition to usual business.  
 
The Group was informed that the Council had supported leisure centres 
throughout the pandemic by providing advice and guidance to support the safe 
re-opening and ensure that Government guidance was followed. £224,000 was 
secured from the National Local Recovery Fund managed on behalf of DCMS 
by Sports England to support Lex Leisure, the Council’s leisure centre provider. 
Leisure centre usage was now at 80% of pre-pandemic levels, with requests 
for swimming lessons higher than pre-pandemic, for children in particular.  
Additionally, the Council had refurbished the indoor bowls hall at the Arena to 
enable the provision of group exercise classes in a socially distanced manner. 
 
Community facilities throughout Rushcliffe had been used as vaccination and 
testing sites.  For example, from Gamston Community Hall, which had been 
refurbished since the pandemic, 180,000 vaccinations had been delivered. 
Testing had been carried out at sites across the Borough.  
 
The Service Manager Corporate Services highlighted the amazing uprising 
from communities across the Borough which showed that people were very 
engaged in their communities and were keen to support delivery by the 
Council.  The existing strong links between Council teams and communities 
were built on to enable a rapid response to communities’ needs.  
 
The Group commended the report adding that an emergency action plan 
covering the lessons learned should be developed in the event that something 
similar should reoccur and that this should address other emergencies, as well 
as the pandemic.  The Service Manager Corporate Services responded that 
the LRF had emergency plans in place for such an eventuality and caution 
should be taken to avoid duplication. This was acknowledged by the Chairman.  
 
The Group suggested that the successes highlighted be promoted to 
communities, encompassing information from the presentation given, to detail 
what had been achieved and also thanking residents for their enthusiasm and 
support, as well as seeking their input to the process.  
 
The Group commended the support available to businesses, which it 
highlighted was highly valued by the business community for the speed of 
response and support provided by the Council. Rushcliffe had a good 

Page 4



 

OFFICIAL 

reputation for responding well to the pandemic. The Group asked that an 
additional recommendation be included in the report to recognise the work 
undertaken by staff and to congratulate them for this success in supporting 
Rushcliffe communities.  
 
It was moved by Councillor N Clarke and seconded by Councillor J Wheeler 
that Corporate Overview Group: 
 
“Welcomes the information provided by officers which highlighted the support 
provided to Rushcliffe communities during the pandemic and its 
congratulations be relayed to all staff for their efforts and support with this”. 
 
The Chairman added that the Borough Council had a strong relationship with 
parish councils throughout Rushcliffe which had enabled the rapid provision of 
support to communities during the pandemic. She added that there had been a 
fantastic hygiene regime in place during the pandemic, and she was 
disappointed that this would not be continued nationally; she was keen for this 
to continue locally.  
 
It was RESOLVED that Corporate Overview Group: 
 

a) Welcomes the information provided by officers which highlighted the 
support provided to Rushcliffe communities during the pandemic and its 
congratulations be relayed to all staff for their efforts and support with 
this 
 

b) Considers the information provided by officers, both in the report and 
verbally at the meeting in response to the Group’s questions 

 
c) Considers whether there are any additional lessons to be learnt from the 

Council’s response to the pandemic  
 

d) Considers whether any actions are necessary at this stage in light of the 
increased knowledge and understanding the Group now has about the 
Council’s response to the pandemic. 

 
24 Diversity Annual Report 

 
 The Service Manager Corporate Services delivered a presentation to support 

the report of the Chief Executive which provided an update on delivery of the 
action plan for the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Scheme and included the 
annual diversity report update.  
 
The Group was informed that the data included in the report was from the 
Census 2011 as the data from the Census 2021 would not be available until 
October 2022. The data detailed in the report for Rushcliffe was not 
significantly different to that included in the previous report to the Group.  
 
The Group was informed that 94% of the Council’s workforce was in the white 
British or white other ethnic group which reflected data for the Borough.  The 
figure for the Borough was higher than that for the East Midlands (89%) and 
nationally (85%).  

Page 5



 

OFFICIAL 

 
The Service Manager Corporate Services added that the age profile of 
Rushcliffe indicated that the Borough had a larger proportion of residents who 
were over 60 years of age (25%) than the East Midlands (23.5%) and national 
average (22%). There was also a larger proportion of residents aged 45-59 
within Rushcliffe (21%) than nationally (19%). Conversely, there were fewer 
younger residents aged 18-24 (7.8%) than the East Midlands (9.53%) and 
nationally (9.37%). In addition, there was a disparity in the 25-29 age groups 
between Rushcliffe (4.7%), East Midlands (6.1%) and nationally (6.8%).  The 
age profile of the Council showed that there was a peak at 45-54, this was the 
same as was reported in 2019/20. 20% of the workforce was aged between 18-
34, and 59% were aged between 35-54. The authority continued to support 
employees who wished to continue working, keeping knowledge within the 
organisation as well as working towards ensuring effective succession planning 
by improving the age diversity of the workforce.  
 
Regarding health, data from the 2011 Census showed that 7,540 people (6.7% 
of the population) in Rushcliffe had a long-term health problem or disability 
which limited their daily activities to a greater extent. A further 9,939 (8.9%) 
were limited to a lesser extent – all lower than the percentages for the East 
Midlands which were 8.6% (greater extent), and 11.9% (a lesser extent).  
  
The Group was informed that the number of employees who declared they had 
a disability was the same as the previous year at 5%.  The Council continued 
to support employees who were either disabled when they joined the authority 
or became disabled during their employment. The Group was informed that the 
Council was a Disability Confident Employer and had reached the required 
criteria to be reaccredited this year.  
 
The gender profile showed that there were slightly more females (51%) than 
males (49%) currently residing in the Borough.  The gender split at the Council 
showed fewer female employees than males (42% compared to 58%) which 
was, in some part, due to the Council’s manual workforce containing roles that 
were traditionally male dominated. The Council had worked to encourage 
female employees into this environment and would continue to promote fair 
recruitment practices and positive action to encourage a diverse workforce.  
 
The Service Manager Corporate Services informed the Group that the Council 
had made positive improvements to the gender pay gap and reporting now 
showed that the gap had narrowed from 8.9% (in 2017) between the mean 
£per hour of male and female pay to now a difference of less than 1%.  The 
Group was informed that the change was due to an improved gender balance 
in senior positions.  
 
The Group was informed that the Council’s current HR system only recorded 
male and female as this is how it is recorded and reported to HMRC. Officers 
would explore whether additional options could be added with the supplier of 
the payroll system. The recruitment system included options for the full range 
of gender identity as this was a form developed internally by the Council.  
 
Regarding the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) Scheme, the Group was 
informed that  

Page 6



 

OFFICIAL 

 EDI actions were embedded in service plans.  

 The Council’s website was now accessible to all people with sight 
impairment who used an e-reader and officers were working through all 
documents included on the website to ensure that they also complied 
with the Accessibility Regulations.  

 The Council’s action plan also identified the need to engage more young 
people in democracy and an event had been held at Rushcliffe Arena for 
30 Year 10 students from Toothill School which saw four candidates 
from the group stand for election.  

 Training in British Sign Language was being explored for customer 
services staff, supported by East Midlands Councils, which could 
possibly be extended to the summer events programme in the Park.  

 Customer Services web and email enquiries had doubled in 2021 
compared to the volume pre-pandemic in 2019. A review would be 
undertaken to identify the best ways to meet customer needs.  

 Work had been undertaken to tackle inactivity through GP surgeries in 
Rushcliffe through ‘Active Practice Accreditation’, whereby GPs would 
encourage staff and patients to be more active.  

 A Recruiting Talent event would be held in June 2022 to encourage 
employers to be inclusive in their recruitment practices and the support 
available to them.  

 A mentoring scheme was being developed under YouNG which would 
see officers at the Council mentoring young people from September 
2022. If successful, further roll-out with Rushcliffe businesses involved 
would be explored.  

 The Council had also employed one Kick Start placement and two 
supported interns, with identified disabilities.  

 Council recruitment practices had been amended to improve 
accessibility, as a CV only was required when applying for vacancies. 
The Council was also working with the Careers Transition Partnership to 
attract veterans to vacancies.  

 Over the last year, 281 applicants had applied for jobs at the Council; 
data on gender, ethnicity etc had been recorded and other Councils had 
been approached so that comparisons and benchmarking could be 
carried out. Unfortunately, data was not available at this time.  

 
The Group commended the report and asked how the Council was spending 
the Apprenticeship Levy and whether the full Levy was accessed. The Service 
Manager Corporate Services agreed to provide an answer following the 
meeting.   
 
The Group supported the approach of the Council, for example the use of BSL 
at the Theatre in the Park events and suggested that the UK Cinema 
Association could advise on the use of audio headsets. They suggested that, to 
support healthy eating, the food offered by Lex Leisure be reviewed, 
particularly in the coffee shop at Rushcliffe Arena.  
 
The Group questioned whether the data regarding demographics (age 30-44 
and 44-59) provided in the report in Appendix A2, was accurate as it did not 
appear to reflect the presentation given.  The Service Manager agreed to 
investigate and report back to the Group.  
 

Page 7



 

OFFICIAL 

It was RESOLVED that the Corporate Overview Group:  
 

a) considered and endorsed the report information provided for the 
diversity annual report; and  
 

b) reviewed the action taken so far as a part of the Equality, Diversity and 
Inclusion Scheme action plan and made suggestions for future action or 
areas of focus. 

 
25 Finance and Performance Management 

 
 The Senior Finance Business Partner presented the report of the Director of 

Finance and Corporate Services which detailed the quarter three position in 
terms of financial and performance monitoring for 2021/22. The report also 
highlighted the Covid-19 variances. 
 
The Senior Finance Business Partner explained that the budgets for quarter 
one were set prudently in anticipation of an adverse impact of Covid but the 
largest of which had recovered more quickly than anticipated namely - car 
parks, leisure, planning and community facilities.  
 
The Senior Finance Business Partner referred to Table 1 at paragraph 4.2 of 
the report which summarised the position at Quarter 3, including lost income 
and costs due to Covid-19 which showed a net Covid pressure of £0.118m, 
offset by other in-year efficiency savings of £1.187m, leaving a net revenue 
efficiency of £1.069m. The Group was informed that Table 1 also showed 
additional non-ringfenced grant funding of £0.167m (new burdens funding). It 
was noted that there was a Business Rates surplus of £2.958m, £2.4m of 
which would be transferred to reserves to cover the anticipated deficit that 
would arise next year and in 2023/24.  
 
Regarding further commitments from in-year efficiencies, detailed in Appendix 
A, this included £0.3m to Streetwise and £50k for feasibility in Central Avenue, 
West Bridgford and £5k for the Bingham Improvement Board. 
 
The Group was informed that the Special Expenses budget had also been 
impacted by Covid restrictions.  However, some activity was covered by 
Government Sales Fees and Charges funding for Quarter 1 leaving a total 
Special Expense budget forecast deficit of £15.7k.  
 
It was explained that the Capital Programme forecast an underspend of £5.1m, 
which mainly related to Bingham Hub, Rushcliffe Oaks Crematorium and LAD 
funding for green energy grants.  Due to current projections, it was unlikely that 
there would be a need to borrow funding.  
 
The Senior Finance Business Partner referred to Table 2 at paragraph 4.11 
and explained that it detailed the grants received and no further grants were 
anticipated. The projected position was positive with a net £54k efficiency.  
However, uncertainties over funding, increased cost of goods and services 
along with government policy reviews, meant that a healthy reserves position 
was vital to ensure the Council remained financially resilient. It was noted that 
there was no room for complacency as there remained a great deal of 

Page 8



 

OFFICIAL 

uncertainty such as Business Rates, Comprehensive Spending review, Fair 
Funding and Brexit not to mention opportunities in the Freeport and 
Development Corporation. The Council’s financial position would need to be 
closely monitored. 
 
The Service Manager Corporate Services informed the Group that two strategic 
tasks still showed as 0% - these related to new legislation expected for 
Planning and Waste services - due to delays with the introduction of the new 
legislation.  
 
The Group was informed that of the 13 Performance Indicators (PI), 12 had 
previously been reported to the Group, which had been made clear in the 
appendices to the report. There was one new exception - Choice Based 
Lettings – which was linked to previously raised exceptions. The delay to the PI 
- LINS32 Average waiting time of applicants rehoused by Choice Based 
Lettings – was covid related, which had caused a backlog of residents waiting 
to be rehoused by Metropolitan Housing as tenants had not moved during the 
pandemic which had paused the turnover of properties.  Some people, 
however, were prepared to wait a long time for the 'right' property.  
 
Regarding the slippage of £5.1m in the Capital programme, the Group asked 
whether this was due to cash flow or the need to change the year in which it 
would be spent. They were informed that there was slippage on the 
Crematorium and the Bingham Hub into next year. They were assured that the 
money would be spent but not within thew timeframe originally intended.  
 
The Group asked whether the percentage of calls answered by the Customer 
Services Centre within the 40 second target was impacted by the type of call 
received. The Service Manager Corporate Services responded that the 
enquiries received during Covid were more detailed and complex, mainly as a 
result of face-to-face services being closed during the early part of the 
pandemic. These naturally took longer to address and therefore led to the 
delay in answering calls within 40 seconds. The target, set in 2005, was 
unachievable and unrealistic considering the current and changing demands to 
the service. Following a benchmarking exercise with similar service providers, 
the target would, therefore, be extended to 60 seconds. The Group was 
informed that currently 80% of calls received this year had been answered 
within this timeframe.  
 
The Group asked whether there had been an increased level of investment to 
utilise the underspend. The Service Manager Finance explained there had 
been increased investments as a result of capital and revenue underspends 
shown through increased interest and investment income figures in the report.  
Officers assess the level of reserves available and make an informed 
assessment when setting the Medium-Term Financial Strategy in March 2023.  
 
The Chairman asked whether the staffing difficulties experienced by 
Metropolitan Housing had been resolved. The Service Manager - Corporate 
Services agreed to clarify the position and inform the Group.  
 
Regarding appeals related to planning applications, the Chairman asked how 
much such appeals had cost the Borough Council. The Service Manager – 

Page 9



 

OFFICIAL 

Corporate Services explained that the two planning applications currently with 
the Planning Inspectorate for non-determination were being processed at the 
lowest possible level, with low cost to the Council. It was noted that there would 
be a nominal cost to staffing resources in pulling together the required 
documentation for the appeal, but that this was not added to the appeal itself.  
 
It was RESOLVED that the Corporate Overview Group noted:  
 

a) the expected revenue budget efficiency for the year of £0.054m 
inclusive of committed reserves; 
 

b) the planned use of reserves totalling £4.140m (detailed in Appendix A); 
 

c) the capital underspend of £5.1m; 
 

d) the expected outturn position for Special Expenses of £15.7k deficit; 
 

e) the progress to date of Strategic Tasks– Appendix F; and  
 

f) the comments for performance exceptions and considered whether 
additional scrutiny was required – Appendix G 

 
26 Feedback from Scrutiny Group Chairmen 

 
 The Chairman reported that the Scrutiny Training for Councillors had been well 

received. She added that she had attended the East Midlands Councils 
Networking Group, the last of which concerned the invitation of witnesses to 
scrutiny meetings. She suggested that Councillors who had submitted a 
Scrutiny Matrix to the Corporate Overview Group, should be invited to attend 
the meeting – at the discretion of the Chairman – to present their case. The 
Chairman of the Communities Scrutiny Group added that such attendance 
should be to the Corporate Overview Group only as it was this Group that 
made decisions about the work programmes for all Scrutiny Groups 
 
The Chairman of the Communities Scrutiny Group explained that there had 
been one substantive item at the last meeting – the Carbon Management Plan 
which had generated a healthy discussion.  Progress had been made against 
targets (despite the level of officer turnover due to personal circumstances and 
was not a reflection on the Council), but achievements against target was 
currently on track although an Action Plan still needed to be developed. He 
informed the Group that the installation of electric vehicle charging points 
throughout the Borough was going well, although there had been issues in 
accessing LAD funding for an EV point at West Bridgford car park due to 
issues with the electricity supply. Officers were liaising with Western Power to 
resolve this. The use of EVs for waste collection was not possible in Rushcliffe 
due to the rurality and size of the Borough. However, the use of bio-oil to power 
current vehicles had been piloted and there was a desire for this to be rolled-
out further in the future. The updating of Leisure Centres, for example 
Keyworth, would be costly. The potential to purchase land for tree planting to 
offset emissions had been discussed but there were concerns about the cost of 
land. He added that the report on the Waste Strategy had been delayed as the 
White Paper was awaited. 

Page 10



 

OFFICIAL 

  
The Chairman of the Growth and Development Scrutiny Group explained that 
the last meeting had considered only one item – which was planning 
communications. The Scrutiny Matrix received was very detailed, and the 
report answered many of the questions raised within it.  It was noted that the 
Planning Team had been under pressure due to staff shortages, reflecting the 
national position, and long-term illness with the Planning Team. He added that 
it had been valuable to the scrutiny process for the Councillor who had 
submitted the Scrutiny Matrix to be involved in the discussion with the Group, 
and he had also invited the Cabinet Portfolio Holder, although he had been 
unable to attend, and the Chairman of the Planning Committee as he expected 
them to have valuable insight into the process.  Regarding planning 
communications, he highlighted that the Council went above and beyond what 
was expected within the requirements.  Although included in the report, 
conservation areas had not been discussed at length as it would be the subject 
of a future report to the Group.  Following discussion, the Group agreed to add 
a third recommendation, concerning a further review once the staffing situation 
was settled.  
 
The Chairman of the Governance Scrutiny Group stated that the agenda for 
last meeting, held in February, had included internal audit, capital and 
investment and risk management.  He informed the Group that Internal Audit 
was on track, despite delays due to Covid-19.  There had been a discussion 
around the material impact of ratings and whether they should be medium or 
substantial. The auditors would consider this along with the Director – Finance. 
There had been a good discussion about the Capital Investment Strategy and 
changes that were required to property investments due to the updated 
requirements in the CIPFA Codes.  The Group was comfortable with the 
assurance received around the levels of investment income and that 
investment income thresholds had not been reached. The Group had also 
discussed the Council’s Treasury Management advisors, Link, and the close 
distinction between advice and decision and the Council’s ability to ensure that 
such investment decisions were made independently.  The Group had also had 
a deep dive into the risk management process and the Corporate Risk 
Register.    
 

27 Feedback from Lead Officers 
 

 The Service Manager Corporate Services updated the Group on East Midlands 
Scrutiny Network Meeting, held on 11 March, which focused on public 
involvement in scrutiny and the different approaches in place.  The discussion 
included the development of a 'witness guide' to enable visitors attending 
meetings to know what was expected and consideration of public involvement 
when the topic was discussed at Corporate Overview Group.  It was noted that 
the next meeting was on 24 June at Erewash District Council in person and the 
topic of discussion was budget setting scrutiny.  
 
The Group was informed that very positive feedback had been received on the 
Scrutiny Training Session held at the end of February.  The Service Manager – 
Corporate Services asked for feedback from Chairmen on whether they had 
noticed a difference in their last scrutiny group meetings.  
  

Page 11



 

OFFICIAL 

It was noted that a 45-minute drop-in virtual session about the process for 
submitting the scrutiny matrix was scheduled for Thursday 5 May at 5.15pm. 
The matrix would be updated to include consideration of public engagement / 
portfolio holder and the new template would be launched after the training. The 
Group was asked to encourage other Councillors to attend.  
  
The Service Manager Corporate Services explained that a Scrutiny Witness 
Charter / Protocol was being developed – as discussed at the last East 
Midlands Scrutiny Network Meeting – which would outline what witnesses 
could expect at the scrutiny meeting but also make clear the provisions 
contained within the Council's Constitution with regard to how witnesses could 
address the meeting and the limitations placed on their ongoing involvement 
for the rest of the meeting. Witnesses included the councillor submitting the 
topic for scrutiny, the portfolio holder, any officers in attendance to present to 
the Group, external expert witnesses or members of community interest groups 
brought in to provide particular insight into the topic under consideration. 
 

28 Consideration of Scrutiny Group Work Programmes 
 

 The Group considered requests for scrutiny items submitted by either Councillors 
or officers using the scrutiny matrix.  In respect of the Biodiversity Net Gain, the 
Group was informed that a detailed response to the questions raised had been 
provided to the Councillor by officers. It was noted that further training and 
awareness was needed as some questions could be addressed directly with 
officers rather than through the scrutiny process.  The Group acknowledged that 
it would be beneficial to have contact details for officers and their responsibilities. 
The Service Manager – Corporate Services advised that the initial contact should 
be at Director or Service Manager level and agreed to provide details to 
Councillors.  
 
The Group then discussed the scrutiny matrix concerning the online and print 
communication put out by the Borough and felt that the questions raised were 
political so were not suitable for scrutiny. It was noted that the Communities 
Scrutiny Group would consider the wider issue of communications at its meeting 
in October following customer survey feedback received and the issues raised 
linked in with this. The Service Manager – Corporate Services agreed to 
feedback to Councillor Walker who had submitted the matrix.  
 
Regarding Electric Vehicle Charging points and it was noted that this had already 
been discussed by the Communities Scrutiny Group at its meeting last week.  
 
It was RESOLVED that the work programmes outlined below be agreed.  
 
 Work Programme 2021-22 / 2022-23 – Corporate Overview Group 

3 May 2022  Standing Items 

o Feedback from Scrutiny Group Chairmen 

o Feedback from Lead Officer 

o Consideration of Scrutiny Group Work 

Programmes 

o Financial and Performance Management 

 Rolling Items 

o Diversity Annual Report  

Page 12



 

OFFICIAL 

o The Impact of Covid-19 on Rushcliffe Borough 

Council – External Focus 

7 June 2022 

(provisional date) 
 Consideration of Scrutiny Group Work Programmes 

 

6 September 2022 

(provisional date) 
 Standing Items 

o Feedback from Scrutiny Group Chairmen 

o Feedback from Lead Officer 

o Consideration of Scrutiny Group Work 

Programmes 

o Financial and Performance Management 

 Rolling Items 

o Health and Safety Annual Report 

15 November 2022 

(provisional date) 
 Standing Items 

o Feedback from Scrutiny Group Chairmen 

o Feedback from Lead Officer 

o Consideration of Scrutiny Group Work 

Programmes 

o Financial and Performance Management 

 Rolling Items 

o Customer Feedback Annual Report 

21 February 2023 

(provisional date) 
 Standing Items 

o Feedback from Scrutiny Group Chairmen 

o Feedback from Lead Officer 

o Consideration of Scrutiny Group Work 

Programmes 

o Financial and Performance Management 

 Rolling Items 

 
Work Programme 2021-22 / 2022-23 – Governance Scrutiny Group 

30 June 2022   Internal Audit Progress Report  

 Internal Audit Annual Report 

 Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 

 Treasury Management Update 

 Constitution Update  

 Code of Conduct  

 External Audit Annual Plan  

 Annual Audit Letter and Value for Money Conclusion  

15 September 2022 

(provisional date) 
 Risk Management  

 Going Concern 

 Asset and Investment Outturn 2021/22 

 Treasury Management Update 

24 November 2022 

(provisional date) 
 Internal Audit Progress Report 

 Annual Audit Report 2021/22 

 Statement of Accounts 

 Streetwise Annual Report 

 Treasury and Asset Investments – 6 monthly update 

 Asset Management Plan 

23 February 2023  Internal Audit Progress Report 

Page 13



 

OFFICIAL 

(provisional date)  Internal Audit Strategy 

 Risk Management – Update  

 Treasury and Asset Investments Strategy 2023/24 

 
 
Work Programme 2021-22 / 2022-23 – Growth and Development Scrutiny 
Group 

 Items / Reports 

20 April 2022  Planning Communications 

  

27 July 2022 

(provisional date) 
 Conservation Areas – Part Two  

 Policies relating to Alternative Energy Sources  

 

21 September 2022 

(provisional date) 
 Covid-19 Business Recovery Update 

 Sewerage infrastructure and discharge within 

Rushcliffe 

4 January 2023 

(provisional date) 
    

  

8 March 2023 

(provisional date) 
   

  

 
Work Programme 2021-22 / 2022-23 – Communities Scrutiny Group 

 Items / Reports 

28 April 2022  Carbon Management Plan 

21 July 2022 

(provisional date) 
 Sports Development in Rushcliffe  

 Access Agreement – Canals and Rivers Trust  

6 October 2022 

(provisional date) 
 Establishment of a Youth Council  

 Council’s External Communications Strategy  

19 January 2023 

(provisional date) 
   

  

16 March 2023 

(provisional date) 
  

 
 
ACTION SHEET 
 

Minute Item Action Officer 

responsible 

4 The successes highlighted in 

the report and presentation be 

promoted to communities, 

encompassing information from 

the presentation given, to detail 

what had been achieved and 

also thanking residents for their 

enthusiasm and support, as 

well as seeking their input to 

Service Manager 

Corporate 

Services 

Page 14



 

OFFICIAL 

the process 

5 Further data to be provided on 

how the Council is spending 

the Apprenticeship Levy.  

 

Service Manager 

Corporate 

Services 

5 Feedback from the Group 

about the need to offer healthy 

options at the Rushcliffe Arena 

coffee shop to be provided to 

Lex Leisure.  

 

Service Manager 

Economic Growth 

and Property 

 

5 To investigate whether the data 

regarding demographics (age 

30-44 and 44-59) provided in 

the report in Appendix A2, was 

accurate as it did not appear to 

reflect the presentation given.  

  

Service Manager 

Economic Growth 

and Property 

 

5 Whether the staffing difficulties 

experienced by Metropolitan 

Housing had been resolved.  

 

Service Manager 

Corporate 

Services 

9 Contact details of Directors and 

Service Managers and their 

responsibilities to be provided 

to all Councillors.  

Service Manager 

Corporate 

Services 

9 To discuss the scrutiny matrix 

submitted to COG concerning 

the online and print 

communication put out by the 

borough and the Group’s 

decision with Councillor Walker  

Service Manager 

Corporate 

Services 

 

 
 
 
The meeting closed at 9.25 pm. 

 
 

CHAIRMAN 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



   • Terms of Reference 
– Implementing identified improvements to scrutiny throughout the 

transitional period including training of scrutiny members, construction 
of new work programmes and reporting methods 

– Creating and receiving feedback on work programmes for the Growth, 
Communities and Governance Scrutiny Groups based on the Cabinet 
Forward Plan, Corporate Strategy, Medium Term Financial Strategy, 
Investment Strategy and Transformation Plan 

– Scrutinising financial and performance management reports on a 
quarterly basis to ensure the smooth running of the Council and delegate 
any necessary investigations into concerning elements of these reports 
to the most appropriate scrutiny group via their work programme 

– Reviewing reports in respect of health and safety, diversity and customer 
feedback to ensure the Council is meeting its statutory duties 

 

 

Corporate Overview 
Group 

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 4



• Terms of Reference 
– Overseeing significant projects contributing towards growth in the 

Borough to ensure deliverables are met and growth related outcomes 
achieved 

– Scrutinising infrastructure development which acts as a catalyst for 
growth in the Borough to support developments progressing in a timely 
fashion and any obstructive barriers are removed or negotiated 

– Review the growth in demand for Council services ensuring all residents 
can access the services they need in a timely and cost efficient manner 

– Considering projects and initiatives to promote economic vibrancy, local 
democracy and community leadership within local towns and villages 
contributing towards the overall Council goal of creating Great Place and 
Great Lifestyle 

 

Growth and 
Development Scrutiny 

P
age 18



• Terms of Reference  
– Reviewing the Council’s partnerships to ensure that community needs 

are being met and the partnership is providing good value for money 
– Identifying areas of community concern, exploring how this can be met 

and making recommendations to that effect 
– Considering concerns specific to the local area in terms of health and 

wellbeing and making recommendations to improve the health and 
wellbeing of local residents 

– Considering projects and initiatives to further the Council’s efforts to 
protect the environment of the Borough and promote environmental 
sustainability to our residents 

 

Communities 
Scrutiny 

P
age 19



• Terms of Reference 
– Reviewing the outcomes of both internal and external audit investigations to 

ensure the Council is compliant with legislation and best practice 
– Monitoring the Annual Governance Statement to ensure compliance with the 

Council’s Code of Corporate Governance 
– Scrutinising the Statement of Accounts  
– Considering the Council’s Risk Management Framework annually to ensure 

current risks are being monitored, and effective controls and mitigating actions 
are in place 

– Considering regular reports on Asset and Investment Management to ensure 
prudent use of Council resources is being made to fulfil the objectives of the 
Investment Strategy and Annual Capital Programme 

– Monitoring the operation of the Council’s Constitution to ensure that it is being 
upheld and to recommend to Council any necessary fundamental changes 

 
 

Governance Scrutiny 

P
age 20



 

  

 

 

 
Corporate Overview Group 
 
Tuesday, 7 June 2022 

 
Consideration of Scrutiny Group Work Programmes 
 

 
Report of the Director – Finance and Corporate Services 
 
1. Purpose of report 

 
1.1. The terms of reference for the Corporate Overview Group accepted at Council in 

May 2019 clearly state that a key responsibility of this Group is to: 
 

 Create and receive feedback on work programmes for the Growth and 
Development, Communities, and Governance Scrutiny Groups based on 
the Cabinet Forward Plan, Corporate Strategy, Medium Term Financial 
Strategy, Capital and Investment Strategy and Transformation Plan. 

 
1.2. Each meeting of the Corporate Overview Group considers the work programmes 

for the Growth and Development, Communities, and Governance Scrutiny Groups 
as well as any new Scrutiny Matrices put forward by Councillors and Officers. 
Those items that are agreed for scrutiny are included on a future work programme 
for one of the four Scrutiny Groups.  
 

1.3. Work programmes for each of the groups moving forward into 2022/23 were 
reviewed in May 2022 to ensure they reflected the current priorities of the Council. 
Given the change of membership on the Corporate Overview Group following 
Annual Council on 26 May 2022, it was felt appropriate to reconsider the agreed 
work programmes to ensure that new Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of scrutiny 
groups as well as the new Chairman of the Corporate Overview Group we given 
the opportunity to agree the work programmes moving forward into the new 
municipal year.  
 

1.4. It is also timely to remind Councillors of the Terms of Reference for each of the 
Scrutiny Groups and the officer support available to Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen. 

 
2. Recommendation 
 

It is RECOMMENDED that the Corporate Overview Group: 
 
a) consider any additional items for scrutiny from the current Cabinet Forward 

Plan, Corporate Strategy, Medium Term Financial Strategy, Capital and 
Investment Strategy and Transformation  Plan (Appendix One) 
 

b) consider the scrutiny matrices submitted by Councillors and officers 
(Appendix Three)  

 
c) determine any additional topics to be included in a scrutiny group work 

programme for 2021-22 for each of the scrutiny groups 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



 

  

d) review the current work programme for each of the scrutiny groups 
(Appendix Four). 

 
3. Reasons for Recommendation 
 
3.1. To fulfil the requirements of the terms of reference for the Corporate Overview 

Group and ensure effective scrutiny of decisions. 
 
4. Supporting Information 
 
4.1. In March 2019, Council adopted a new structure for scrutiny comprised of one 

Corporate Overview Group and three additional Scrutiny Groups focused on 
Growth and Development, Communities, and Governance. The Corporate 
Overview Group is responsible for setting the work programmes for all scrutiny 
groups based on the Cabinet Forward Plan, Corporate Strategy, Medium Term 
Financial Strategy, Capital and Investment Strategy and Transformation  Plan. 
Links to these documents can be found at Appendix One. 
 

4.2. The Corporate Overview Group considers potential items for scrutiny (submitted 
by officers and Councillors on a Scrutiny Matrix) at each meeting of the Corporate 
Overview Group. There are currently a number of items that have been accepted 
for scrutiny that have been programmed into the 2022/23 municipal year. The 
Scrutiny Matrices for these accepted items are included at Appendix Two.  
 

4.3. As the Corporate Overview Group has a number of new members and a new 
Chairman, it was felt appropriate and timely to consider those items that have 
already been approved for scrutiny as well as a number of potential items that 
have been raised by officers and Councillors for consideration. These new items 
are included at Appendix Three.  
 

4.4. The Group is invited to discuss these and make a judgement about whether they 
should be included in the work programme for a particular scrutiny group during 
the coming year. 

 
4.5. Appendix Four shows the work programmes for all scrutiny groups as agreed in 

May 2022 by the Corporate Overview Group. The Group is asked to consider if the 
work programmes remain appropriate and achievable for the current year.  

 
4.6. Any additional items identified from the Cabinet Forward Plan, Corporate Strategy, 

Medium Term Financial Strategy, Capital and Investment Strategy and 
Transformation Plan, highlighted by members of the Group, or raised by officers, 
should be assessed against the scrutiny matrix to inform the decision to include 
them on a scrutiny group work programme.  

 
4.7. It is important to note that the purpose of scrutiny is to:  

 

 scrutinise a topic in more depth than the Cabinet can in advance of a 
Cabinet decision with the purpose of informing the decision to be made by 
Cabinet 
 

 investigate topics of concern to residents resulting in recommendations to 
Cabinet with the purpose of improving Council services 
 

Page 22



 

  

 monitor the progress of the Corporate Strategy to ensure the Council is 
meeting its stated priorities accepting that this may require more in-depth 
scrutiny of specific strategic projects at appropriate times 
 

 hold the Executive to account on behalf of the residents of the Borough to 
ensure sound decisions are made. 

 
4.8. The Group is reminded that there will be cases in which scrutiny is not necessary 

or appropriate at this time. Officers will be clear in providing reasons where they 
feel this is the case. Councillors are also asked to be mindful of the resources 
available for scrutiny and listen to the advice of officers present in the meeting.  
  

5. Risks and Uncertainties  
 
5.1. There are no direct risks associated with this report. 

 
6. Implications  

 
6.1. Financial Implications 

 
There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations of this 
report. 
 

6.2.  Legal Implications 
 

This report supports effective scrutiny. There are no direct legal implications 
arising from the recommendations of this report. 
 

6.3.  Equalities Implications 
 

There are no direct equalities implications arising from the recommendations of 
this report. 
 

6.4.  Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 Implications 
 

There are no direct Section 17 implications arising from the recommendations of 
this report. 
 

7. Link to Corporate Priorities   
  

Quality of Life Scrutiny of issues of concern to residents can lead to 

improvements in their perceived Quality of Life. 

Efficient Services Scrutiny of issues of concern to residents can lead to more 

efficient services. 

Sustainable 

Growth 

Scrutiny of issues of concern to residents can lead to 

Sustainable Growth. 

The Environment Scrutiny of issues of concern to residents can lead to 

improvements in the Environment. 

 
 
8.  Recommendations 
  

Page 23



 

  

It is RECOMMENDED that the Corporate Overview Group: 
 
a) consider any additional items for scrutiny from the current Cabinet Forward 

Plan, Corporate Strategy, Medium Term Financial Strategy, Capital and 
Investment Strategy and Transformation  Plan (Appendix One) 
 

b) consider the scrutiny matrices submitted by Councillors and officers 
(Appendix Three)  

 
c) determine any additional topics to be included in a scrutiny group work 

programme for 2021-22 for each of the scrutiny groups 
 

d) review the current work programme for each of the scrutiny groups 
(Appendix Four). 

 
 

 
 

For more information contact: 
 

Charlotte Caven-Atack 
0115 9148 278 
ccaven-atack@rushcliffe.gov.uk 
 

Background papers available for 
Inspection: 

None 

List of appendices: Appendix One – Document Links 
Appendix Two – Items for Scrutiny that were 
approved by the Corporate Overview Group in 
2021/22 for the 2022/23 work programme 
Appendix Three – Potential Scrutiny Items for 
Consideration 
Appendix Four – Work Programmes 2022/23 
 

 

Page 24



 

  

Appendix One 
 

 
 

Links  

 
Cabinet Forward Plan  
Cabinet, Forward Plan - May 2022 Plan Document 01/05/2022  
 
Corporate Strategy  
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/publicationscheme/3wh
atourprioritiesareandhowwearedoing/Corporate%20Strategy%202019-23.pdf  
 
Medium Term Financial Strategy, Investment Strategy, Transformation Plan  
Council – March 2022 

Page 25

https://democracy.rushcliffe.gov.uk/mgListPlanItems.aspx?PlanId=169&RP=137
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/publicationscheme/3whatourprioritiesareandhowwearedoing/Corporate%20Strategy%202019-23.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/publicationscheme/3whatourprioritiesareandhowwearedoing/Corporate%20Strategy%202019-23.pdf
https://democracy.rushcliffe.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=145&MId=1015&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

Appendix Two 
 

Previously Approved Scrutiny Matrices 
 

Growth and Development Scrutiny Group 
 

Councillor Request for Scrutiny 

Proposed topic of scrutiny … Conservation Areas 

I would like to understand … 

(key lines of enquiry) 

Residents are expressing concerns about how 

conservation areas are operated within the 

borough and what effect being in a conservation 

area can have on other planning matters. This 

scrutiny would look to understand the following:  

 What is a conservation area? 

 Why is it designated? 

 Where they are? 

 What features they contain? 

 What makes them special? 

 How they are determined? 

 What effect they have on planning matters? 

 What other restrictions apply? 

 What does a conservation area not prevent? 

 What is the statutory requirement? 

 Is there a policy? 

 What’s it like living in one? 

 What are the positives and negatives? 

 What resources does the borough have for 
this area of work? 

Once Councillors understand Conservation 

Areas in more detail they will be able to put 

residents’ concerns in context, respond to such 

concerns and make suggestions to officers if 

any changes or improvements can be made. 

 

Councillor Request for Scrutiny 

Councillor Clarke 

Proposed topic of scrutiny … 
Council policies relating to all forms of alternative 

energy and emerging technologies  

Page 27



 

  

I would like to understand … 

(key lines of enquiry) 

What criteria are used when considering potential 

planning applications for alternative energy sites. 

How do we assess the impact and what weight is given 

to each factor when giving permission for such a site 

on: 

 the environment - flora and fauna, air quality, 

visual  

 residents - their amenities 

 affect on views 

 noise 

 roads - traffic movements 

 end of life of site - re-instatement conditions. 

How do we assess: 

 existing infrastructure and any need for 

additional infrastructure 

 loss of agricultural/industrial land/green 

spaces/wildlife habitat.  Much of Rushcliffe is 

high grade agricultural or pastureland. 

How do we quantify the counteracting benefits of: 

 Carbon reduction potential 

 Environmental additions 

 Long term benefits for local residents and 

businesses. 

What assessment has been made of sites recently 

given permission and the impact of so doing?  What 

have been the consequences of allowing those sites? 

How do we assess keeping up with advances in 

technology with the potential to allow obsolete methods 

which create harm as against newer methods? 

 
Covid-19 Business Recovery Update is a rolling item. It was last considered in October 
2021.  
 

Councillor Request for Scrutiny 

Councillors Barney, Brennan, Clarke, Combellack, Dickman, and Upton 

Proposed topic of scrutiny … Sewage infrastructure and discharge within Rushcliffe 

I would like to understand … 

(key lines of enquiry) 

I would like to understand the situation in Rushcliffe 

regarding sewage infrastructure and any unlawful 

discharges. This is a national problem but could also be 

locally affecting environmental health, humans and 

wildlife.  

 

Page 28

http://rbc-moderngov/documents/s9196/Covid-19%20Business%20Recovery%20Update.pdf
http://rbc-moderngov/documents/s9196/Covid-19%20Business%20Recovery%20Update.pdf


 

  

I have attached some research information (which is 

available on request from Democratic Services) - there 

were 101 incidents in Radcliffe on Trent recorded in 

2020 and problems in other villages. There have been 

concerns with the infrastructure in the Nevile Ward 

affecting Hickling and Kinoulton.  East Leake and 

Ruddington, Sutton Bonington and Normanton on Soar 

have had considerable problems, and probably 

elsewhere in recent years.  There may be problems 

elsewhere from other local Rushcliffe pumping stations 

particularly as we are still very reliant on old Victorian 

pipe work. We therefore need to know more in order to 

protect our residents.  Leaks into the Trent have 

received publicity recently giving rise to concerns. 

Residents and Local Councillors are concerned. 

 

New housing is permitted and planning and building 

regulations have controls within the development sites 

but do not necessarily address the added demand 

placed on existing infrastructure, which may be very old.  

 

It maybe that we need to lobby or enhance our liaison 

with other agencies e.g. STWA and County Council but 

at the end of the day we need to protect the residents of 

Rushcliffe.  

 

Residents need to be reassured that sewage is fully 

treated before any discharge to water courses, therefore 

a better understanding of the sewage system and 

controls within the Borough would be helpful and how 

the situation can be addressed. 

 

Do we need: 

 additional planning controls  

 improved consultee responses to planning 

applications regarding sewage infrastructure 

 to lobby government for amended legislation 

 amendments to existing policies.  

 stronger conditions on planning approvals 

 more rigorous enforcement procedures 

 consideration of apportioning s106 monies to 

improvement of sewage infrastructure. 

 

Page 29



 

  

Communities Scrutiny Group 
 

Councillor Request for Scrutiny 

Councillor R Walker 

Proposed topic of scrutiny … Sports Development in Rushcliffe 

I would like to understand … 

(key lines of enquiry) 

 

This scrutiny seeks to understand: 

 

 What measures are in place to track participation in 

sport/physical activity in the Borough? 

 What these measures tell us about trends? 

 How we are tackling under-representation within 

particular groups? 

 How we can further improve school/club links and 

increase competition in school sport? 

 How is the Borough delivering community sport and 

physical activity opportunities? 

 What are the barriers to increasing participation 

and what interventions/resources are needed to 

overcome them? 

 

Officer Request for Scrutiny 

D Hayden, Community Development Manager 

Proposed topic of scrutiny … 
Access Agreement between RBC and Canal and River 

Trust (CRT) for the Grantham Canal (2003 – 2025) 

I would like to understand … 

(key lines of enquiry) 

 

What CRT is delivering under the agreement 

If the agreement should be renewed and, if so, what 

revisions should be made 

 

 

Councillor Request for Scrutiny 

Councillors J Wheeler / Jones 

Proposed topic of scrutiny 

… 

Establishment of a Rushcliffe Youth Council 

I would like to understand … 
I would like Scrutiny to consider how we can establish a 

Youth Council to enable the Council to engage with our 

Page 30



 

  

(key lines of enquiry) young people to hear their views on key subjects such 

as Climate Change, our Nature Strategy and leisure 

provision as well as other areas we are responsible for. 

This Youth Council should aim to have representation 

from every Secondary School across year groups, as 

well as YOUNG and Positive Futures. Primary School 

aged Children should also have an opportunity to 

contribute.  

  

 
The scrutiny matrix for the item on External Communications is included at appendix three of 
this report. 
 
Carbon Management is a rolling item and was last considered in April 2022. 
 
 

 
 

Page 31

http://rbc-moderngov/documents/s9996/Carbon%20Management%20Plan.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

Appendix Three 
 

 

Rushcliffe Borough Council – Scrutiny Matrix 
 

Councillor Request for Scrutiny 

Councillor J Walker 

Proposed topic of scrutiny … The inclusion of Active Travel in future Local Plans 

I would like to understand … 

(key lines of enquiry) 

How to make Active Travel a compulsory condition for new 

housing developments using the government’s LTNI/20 

guidance. 

I think this topic should be 

scrutinised because …  

(please tick) 

 Poor Performance Identified 

x Change in Legislation or Local Policy 

x Resident Concern or Interest 

 Cabinet Recommendation 

x Links to the Corporate Strategy 

 Other (please state reason) 
 
 

Officer Consideration of Councillor Request for Scrutiny 

Officer Feedback (please tick)  Officer Comment 

- Issue already being addressed  
This is already in hand on the basis of previous 
scrutiny of this area 

- Issue has already been 
considered in the last 2 years? 

  

- Issue is a legal matter   

- Issue of a complaint 
investigation 

  

- Issue is a staffing matter   

- There is an alternative way of 
dealing with the issue 

  

Is there sufficient capacity …  

- Scrutiny Work Programme?   

- Officer Resources?   

Recommendation 

Item is not put forward for scrutiny at this point in time. 
It has already been discussed and officers are 
implementing the recommendations of the previous 
scrutiny. 

Page 33



 

  

Lead Officer  

Proposed Timescale for Scrutiny 
and Scrutiny Group 

 

 

Page 34



 

  

Rushcliffe Borough Council – Scrutiny Matrix 
 

Officer Request for Scrutiny 

Service Manager – Corporate Services 

Proposed topic of scrutiny … Corporate Communications 

I would like to understand … (key 

lines of enquiry) 

The Council is shortly to publish an External 

Communications Strategy which will shape the 

direction of communications over the next three years. 

Scrutiny of this strategy will enable Councillors to better 

understand the Council’s approach to communications 

across all channels (print media, social media, 

electronic media, the website, and video) and well as 

its response to reactive media enquiries, the volume 

and diversity of the Council’s Communications, and the 

national guidelines governing Council Communications. 

Officers will also present information relating to future 

of communications, areas of development and methods 

for communicating with hard to reach groups. 

I think this topic should be 

scrutinised because …  

(please tick) 

 Poor Performance Identified 

 Change in Legislation or Local Policy 

 Resident Concern or Interest 

 Cabinet Recommendation 

 Links to the Corporate Strategy 

 Other (please state reason)  
 
Incorporating concerns raised by Councillor J 
Walker in a scrutiny matrix submitted in May 2022 
at the request of the Corporate Overview Group. 

Officer Consideration of Request for Scrutiny 

Officer Feedback (please tick) 

- Issue already being addressed  Issue of a complaint investigation  

- Issue has already been considered 
in the last 2 years? 

 Issue is a staffing matter  

- Issue is a legal matter  
There is an alternative way of dealing with 
the issue 

 

Is there sufficient capacity …  

Page 35



 

  

- Scrutiny Work Programme?   

- Officer Resources?   

Recommendation 
Schedule for Communities Scrutiny Group October 
2022 

Consideration of Request for Scrutiny at COG 

Public Involvement / engagement?  

Expert witnesses?  

Portfolio holder?  

Lead Officer?  

Proposed Timescale for Scrutiny 
and Scrutiny Group 

 

 

Page 36



 

  

Rushcliffe Borough Council – Scrutiny Matrix 
 

Officer Request for Scrutiny 

Service Manager – Corporate Services 

Proposed topic of scrutiny … Assessment of progress of strategic tasks 

I would like to understand … (key 

lines of enquiry) 

The Corporate Strategy 2019-2023 is in its final year. It 

contained a number of Strategic Tasks. Progress on 

these is monitored at regular Corporate Overview 

Group meetings. It would be possible to bring together 

an update on all Strategic Tasks towards the end of the 

year before a new Corporate Strategy is developed 

following the May 2023 Borough Council Election to 

allow Councillors to view progress made over the four 

year period of the Corporate Strategy. 

I think this topic should be 

scrutinised because …  

(please tick) 

 Poor Performance Identified 

 Change in Legislation or Local Policy 

 Resident Concern or Interest 

 Cabinet Recommendation 

 Links to the Corporate Strategy 

 Other (please state reason) 

Officer Consideration of Request for Scrutiny 

Officer Feedback (please tick) 

- Issue already being addressed  Issue of a complaint investigation  

- Issue has already been considered 
in the last 2 years? 

 Issue is a staffing matter  

- Issue is a legal matter  
There is an alternative way of dealing with 
the issue 

 

Is there sufficient capacity …  

- Scrutiny Work Programme?   

- Officer Resources?   

Recommendation Schedule for Corporate Overview Group February 2023 

Consideration of Request for Scrutiny at COG 

Public Involvement / engagement?  

Expert witnesses?  

Page 37



 

  

Portfolio holder?  

Lead Officer?  

Proposed Timescale for Scrutiny 
and Scrutiny Group 

 

 

Page 38



 

  

Rushcliffe Borough Council – Scrutiny Matrix 
 

Officer Request for Scrutiny 

Service Manager – Chief Executive’s Department 

Proposed topic of scrutiny … Corporate Enforcement Policy  

I would like to understand … (key 

lines of enquiry) 

The Council’s Corporate Enforcement Policy is due for 

renewal during 2022/23. This overarching policy 

provides the framework for a number of different types 

of enforcement the Council is able to take – from 

planning to environmental health as well as legal 

action. Scrutiny will give Councillors the opportunity to 

understand more about enforcement powers the 

Council can use as well as the framework within which 

the Council’s Enforcement Officers operate. 

I think this topic should be 

scrutinised because …  

(please tick) 

 Poor Performance Identified 

 Change in Legislation or Local Policy 

 Resident Concern or Interest 

 Cabinet Recommendation 

 Links to the Corporate Strategy 

 Other (please state reason) 

Officer Consideration of Request for Scrutiny 

 
Officer Feedback (please tick) 

- Issue already being addressed  Issue of a complaint investigation  

- Issue has already been considered 
in the last 2 years? 

 Issue is a staffing matter  

- Issue is a legal matter  
There is an alternative way of dealing with 
the issue 

 

Is there sufficient capacity …  

- Scrutiny Work Programme?   

- Officer Resources?   

Recommendation 
Schedule for Communities Scrutiny Group January 
2023  

Consideration of Request for Scrutiny at COG 

Public Involvement / engagement?  

Page 39



 

  

Expert witnesses?  

Portfolio holder?  

Lead Officer?  

Proposed Timescale for Scrutiny 
and Scrutiny Group 

 

 
 

Page 40



 

  

Rushcliffe Borough Council – Scrutiny Matrix 
 

Officer Request for Scrutiny 

Director – Finance and Corporate Services 

Proposed topic of scrutiny … Business Continuity Strategy 

I would like to understand … (key 

lines of enquiry) 

The Council’s Business Continuity Strategy is due for 

renewal during 2022/23. This strategy outlines the 

measures the Council has in place to ensure vital 

services continue to be delivered to residents during a 

crisis such as cyber-attack, building fire or flood. This 

strategy is invoked when the Council is unable to 

continue to provide ‘business as usual’ services and 

will give Councillors the opportunity to assess the 

actions the Council will take to get services functioning, 

the priority order of getting Council services functioning, 

and how Councillors can best provide community 

leadership during a business continuity incident.  

I think this topic should be 

scrutinised because …  

(please tick) 

 Poor Performance Identified 

 Change in Legislation or Local Policy 

 Resident Concern or Interest 

 Cabinet Recommendation 

 Links to the Corporate Strategy 

 Other (please state reason) 

Officer Consideration of Councillor Request for Scrutiny 

Officer Feedback (please tick) 

- Issue already being addressed  Issue of a complaint investigation  

- Issue has already been considered 
in the last 2 years? 

 Issue is a staffing matter  

- Issue is a legal matter  
There is an alternative way of dealing with 
the issue 

 

Is there sufficient capacity …  

- Scrutiny Work Programme?   

- Officer Resources?   

Recommendation Schedule for Corporate Overview Group February 2023 

Page 41



 

  

Consideration of Request for Scrutiny at COG 

Public Involvement / engagement?  

Expert witnesses?  

Portfolio holder?  

Lead Officer?  

Proposed Timescale for Scrutiny 
and Scrutiny Group 

 

 
 

Page 42



 

  

Rushcliffe Borough Council – Scrutiny Matrix 
 

Officer Request for Scrutiny 

Service Manager - Neighbourhoods 

Proposed topic of scrutiny … Environment Policy 

I would like to understand … (key 

lines of enquiry) 

The Council has an Environment Policy Statement 

which outlines how it aims to lessen its impact upon the 

local environment in terms of its buildings and 

operations as well as influencing behavioural change 

within local communities. The Policy is due for renewal 

in 2022/23 and scrutiny will give Councillors the 

opportunity to discuss the Council’s approach and 

ensure the Policy creates the change they wish to see 

in the Borough. 

I think this topic should be 

scrutinised because …  

(please tick) 

 Poor Performance Identified 

 Change in Legislation or Local Policy 

 Resident Concern or Interest 

 Cabinet Recommendation 

 Links to the Corporate Strategy 

 Other (please state reason) 

Officer Consideration of Councillor Request for Scrutiny 

Officer Feedback (please tick) 

- Issue already being addressed  Issue of a complaint investigation  

- Issue has already been considered 
in the last 2 years? 

 Issue is a staffing matter  

- Issue is a legal matter  
There is an alternative way of dealing with 
the issue 

 

Is there sufficient capacity …  

- Scrutiny Work Programme?   

- Officer Resources?   

Recommendation  Schedule for Communities Scrutiny Group March 2023 

Consideration of Request for Scrutiny at COG 

Public Involvement / engagement?  

Expert witnesses?  

Page 43



 

  

Portfolio holder?  

Lead Officer?  

Proposed Timescale for Scrutiny 
and Scrutiny Group 

 

 
 

Page 44



 

  

Rushcliffe Borough Council – Scrutiny Matrix 
 

Officer Request for Scrutiny 

Service Manager – Corporate Services 

Proposed topic of scrutiny … Customer Access Strategy 

I would like to understand … (key 

lines of enquiry) 

The Council is in the process of developing a new 

Customer Access Strategy to support the development 

of Customer Services in a post-Covid world. The ways 

in which residents wish to do business with the Council 

are changing and the Council must adapt to meet these 

needs without leaving behind those that prefer the 

more traditional methods at the same time as running 

an efficient and cost-effective business unit. Scrutiny 

will increase Councillor’s understanding of the demand 

on customer services, the variety of methods 

customers can use to access Council services, and 

how access to those services might develop over the 

coming years. They will also have the opportunity to put 

forward the views and experiences of their residents to 

ensure future services meet their needs. 

I think this topic should be 

scrutinised because …  

(please tick) 

 Poor Performance Identified 

 Change in Legislation or Local Policy 

 Resident Concern or Interest 

 Cabinet Recommendation 

 Links to the Corporate Strategy 

 Other (please state reason) 

Officer Consideration of Request for Scrutiny 

Officer Feedback (please tick) 

- Issue already being addressed  Issue of a complaint investigation  

- Issue has already been considered 
in the last 2 years? 

 Issue is a staffing matter  

- Issue is a legal matter  
There is an alternative way of dealing with 
the issue 

 

Is there sufficient capacity …  

Page 45



 

  

- Scrutiny Work Programme?   

- Officer Resources?   

Recommendation 
Schedule for Corporate Overview Group November 
2022 

Consideration of Request for Scrutiny at COG 

Public Involvement / engagement?  

Expert witnesses?  

Portfolio holder?  

Lead Officer?  

Proposed Timescale for Scrutiny 
and Scrutiny Group 

 

 
 

Page 46



 

  

 Rushcliffe Borough Council – Scrutiny Matrix 
 

Officer Request for Scrutiny 

Service Manager – Economic Growth and Property 

Proposed topic of scrutiny … UK Shared Prosperity Fund  

I would like to understand … (key 

lines of enquiry) 

The UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) is a central 

pillar of the UK government’s ambitious Levelling Up 

agenda which was launched in April 2022. The 

Borough Council has been awarded an allocation of 

£2,571,462 for 3 years (2022/23 to 2024/25). Scrutiny 

of the plans the Council has in place using this funding 

to build pride in place, support high quality skills 

training, support pay, employment and productivity 

growth and increasing life chances will ensure the 

UKSPF is appropriately channeled and meets the 

needs of local communities. 

I think this topic should be 

scrutinised because …  

(please tick) 

 Poor Performance Identified 

 Change in Legislation or Local Policy 

 Resident Concern or Interest 

 Cabinet Recommendation 

 Links to the Corporate Strategy 

 Other (please state reason) 

Officer Consideration of Request for Scrutiny 

Officer Feedback (please tick) 

- Issue already being addressed  Issue of a complaint investigation  

- Issue has already been considered 
in the last 2 years? 

 Issue is a staffing matter  

- Issue is a legal matter  
There is an alternative way of dealing with 
the issue 

 

Is there sufficient capacity …  

- Scrutiny Work Programme?   

- Officer Resources?   

Recommendation 
Schedule for Growth and Development Scrutiny Group 
January 2023 

Page 47



 

  

Consideration of Request for Scrutiny at COG 

Public Involvement / engagement?  

Expert witnesses?  

Portfolio holder?  

Lead Officer?  

Proposed Timescale for Scrutiny 
and Scrutiny Group 

 

 

Page 48



Appendix Four 

Work Programme 2022-23 – Corporate Overview Group 

7 June 2022 

(provisional date) 

 Consideration of Scrutiny Group Work Programmes 
 

6 September 2022 

(provisional date) 

 Standing Items 
o Feedback from Scrutiny Group Chairmen 
o Feedback from Lead Officer 
o Consideration of Scrutiny Group Work Programmes 
o Financial and Performance Management 

 Rolling Items 
o Health and Safety Annual Report 

15 November 2022 

(provisional date) 

 Standing Items 
o Feedback from Scrutiny Group Chairmen 
o Feedback from Lead Officer 
o Consideration of Scrutiny Group Work Programmes 
o Financial and Performance Management 

 Rolling Items 
o Customer Feedback Annual Report 

21 February 2023 

(provisional date) 

 Standing Items 
o Feedback from Scrutiny Group Chairmen 
o Feedback from Lead Officer 
o Consideration of Scrutiny Group Work Programmes 
o Financial and Performance Management 

 Rolling Items 
o  

xxxxxx  Standing Items 
o Feedback from Scrutiny Group Chairmen 
o Feedback from Lead Officer 
o Consideration of Scrutiny Group Work Programmes 
o Financial and Performance Management 

 Rolling Items 
o Diversity Annual Report and update on the Equality and 

Diversity Strategy 

Page 49



Appendix Four 

Draft Work Programme 2022-23 – Governance Scrutiny Group 

30 June 2022   Internal Audit Progress Report  

 Internal Audit Annual Report 

 Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 

 Treasury Management Update 

 Constitution Update  

 Code of Conduct  

 External Audit Annual Plan  

 Annual Audit Letter and Value for Money Conclusion  

15 September 2022 

(provisional date) 

 Risk Management  

 Going Concern 

 Asset and Investment Outturn 2021/22 

 Treasury Management Update 

24 November 2022 

(provisional date) 

 Internal Audit Progress Report 

 Annual Audit Report 2021/22 

 Statement of Accounts 

 Streetwise Annual Report 

 Treasury and Asset Investments – 6 monthly update 

 Asset Management Plan 

23 February 2023 

(provisional date) 

 Internal Audit Progress Report 

 Internal Audit Strategy 

 Risk Management – Update  

 Treasury and Asset Investments Strategy 2023/24 

 

 

Page 50



Appendix Four 

Work Programme 2022-23 – Growth and Development Scrutiny Group 

 Items / Reports 

27 July 2022 

(provisional date) 

 Conservation Areas – Part Two  

 Policies relating to Alternative Energy Sources [request to 
move item to later meeting due to officer availability]  
 

21 September 2022 

(provisional date) 

 Covid-19 Business Recovery Update 

 Sewerage infrastructure and discharge within Rushcliffe 

4 January 2023 

(provisional date) 

    

  

8 March 2023 

(provisional date) 

   

  

 

Work Programme 2022-23 – Communities Scrutiny Group 

 Items / Reports 

21 July 2022 

(provisional date) 

 Sports Development in Rushcliffe  

 Access Agreement – Canals and Rivers Trust  

6 October 2022 

(provisional date) 

 Establishment of a Youth Council  

 Council’s External Communications Strategy [item requested 
at May 2022 Corporate Overview Group – new matrix included 
with this agenda] 

19 January 2023 

(provisional date) 

   

  

16 March 2023 

(provisional date) 

 Carbon Management Plan 

  

 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 3 May 2022
	4 Terms of Reference for Corporate Overview Group and Scrutiny Committees
	�
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	What we are working towards
	Interim Scrutiny Structure
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Slide Number 26
	Slide Number 27
	Slide Number 28
	Slide Number 29
	Slide Number 30

	5 Consideration of Scrutiny Group Work Programmes
	Enc. 1 for Consideration of Scrutiny Group Work Programmes
	Enc. 2 for Consideration of Scrutiny Group Work Programmes
	Enc. 3 for Consideration of Scrutiny Group Work Programmes
	Enc. 4 for Consideration of Scrutiny Group Work Programmes




